








After the battle, Fort William Henry was finished on the sand terrace
overlooking the lake. The fort was built of timbercribs filled with

sand from the moat. The main gate was on the south side, and a stockaded
area on the north. The choice was poor in the sense that the sand, being
easy to dig, allowed Montcalm to advance his saps and parallels very
quickly when he laid seige two years later in 1757. His artillery quickly
reduced one bastion. The sand pouring out through broken timbers caused
it to collapse and the fort surrendered. The attack on the unarmed
British prisoners following the surrender is a matter of historic record.

CONTINUE NORTH TOWARD LAKE GEORGE. ‘

42,7 .3 INTERSECTION - BEACH ROAD TURN
LEFT. Note: Fort William Henry
reconstruction..

43.1 b "INTERSECTION - RT 9 - Turn right.

43.7 .6 INTERSECTION - RT 9 & RT 9-N Bear
right on Rt. 9-N

44,1 A INTERSECTION - NORTHWAY I-87
ACCESS TRAFFIC LIGHT - TURN LEFT
AND PARK - STOP #8

STOP {8

This exposure of the upper Cambrian Ticonderoga Formation dips gently
toward the northeast and consists of mostly sandstone which places it in
the upper third of the formation but not at the top which contains some
chert. There are ripples and stromatolites present, the latter being in
the reddish-brown dolomitic layer at the top of the ledge. The upper
surface has been planed smooth by glaciation and the direction of movement
has been recorded in striations found there. Visible to the west is an
exposure of precambrian rock at the bend in the road. These observations
tend to support the hypothesis that the valley floor is a downfaulted
block or graben. Further support to the idea comes from the existance
of two magnetic anomalies between the two outcrops. (Personal communi-
cation from John Mead) A similiar relationship between the Precambrian
and the carbonates can be seen along the east side of the valley. (Along
Rt. 9-L near Crosbyside)

There are two courses open to the trip: 1st double back to Rt. 9, turn
right and proceed toward Warrensburg, or continue on to the NORTH BOUND
LAND OF I-87. THE LOG WILL DESCRIBE THE FIRST.

HEAD SOUTH TOWARD LAKE GEORGE VILLAGE ON RT. 9-N

44,5 A INTERSECTION RT. 9 & TRAFFIC LIGHT
TURN RIGHT TOWARD WARRENSBURG.
The road follows the trace of the
English Brook Fault.

46.5 2.0 BRIEF PAUSE - THE ENGLISH BROOK
SAPROLITH

—————

———
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Note: This exposure of deeply weathered rock has been known since the
1930's and has miraculously survived repeated road improvements. Origin-
ally, the exposure was topped with two layers of glacial boulders separated
by a lake sand. Each spring these came rolling down - some three feet in
diameter - to the dismay of the highway department. Their recent removal
and the gradual covering of the face in its own debris has greatly altered
the appearance of the site. The preservation of the saprolith is thought
to be the result of deep weathering along the plane of the fault and the
transverse orientation of the fault to the direction of ice movement.

This is one of the few such exposures which can be easily seen in- New
York State.

CONTINUE NORTH ON TR. 9

49.1 2.6 ' INTERSECTION AND TRAFFIC LIGHT
E. SCHROON RIVER ROAD. TURN RIGHT
OVER BRIDGE.

49.4 - .3 " EXIT 23 - I-87
TAKE NORTHBOUND LANE TO EXIT 25

Note enroute: This valley was occupied by Glacial Lake Warrensburg,
evidence for which is seen in the numerous sand deposits along its floor.
Just short of Milepost 63, the road cuts show Precambrian rocks on omne
side and layered sediments on the other, the road straddling a fault.

59.2 9.8 EXIT 25 LEAVE I-87 TURN RIGHT
(EAST) ON N.Y. RT. 8 TOWARD
BRANT LAKE AND HAGUE

73.4 .. 3.9 HAGUE - INTERSECTION - RT.9
' TURN LEFT (NORTH) Toward
Ticonderoga
79.1 - 1.7 ROGER'S ROCK STATE PARK AND CAMP-

SITE. Named for Roger's Slide -
thought to be the fault scarp
forming the east side of the Lake
George graben and the scene of Major
Roger's escape from the French and
Indians, March 13, 1758.

84.3 ' 5.2 IN TICONDEROGA - INTERSECTION
LEAVE RT's 9-N & NY 8, CONTINUE
STRAIGHT ON NY RT. 73

84.7 4 Ticonderoga Creek - The outlet
from Lake George flowing into
Champlain
86.0 , - 1.3 INTERSECTION - LEAVE RT. 73 GO
' STRAIGHT THROUGH TO FORT TICON-
DEROGA

87.0 1.0 STOP #9 FORT TICONDEROGA
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STOP #9 FORT TICONDEROGA (CARILLON)

This fort is built near if not on the site of Champlain's skirmish
with the Iroquois in 1609. Construction was started in 1755 and essen-
tially completed by 1758. Modifications, repairs and improvements con-
tinued until the end of the American Revolution, when it was allowed
to fall into total disrepair.

The original construction was of earth and timber, later on improved
by stone facints. The fort was designed for a small permanent garrison
with extensive outworks for a larger "summer" army. The location was
poorly chosen, since the works are well within range of seige guns
placed on the heights of Mt. Defiance.

The stone fort was built from Ordovician limestone, quarried on the
site, and was in total ruin prior to reconstruction. The stone work,
weakened by solution and frost action, had collapsed into the moat,
and hauled off to build '"celler walls" by the post war settlers. The
original foundations can be recognized in the walls by their weathered
appearance.

Mt. Independence, on the opposite shore, was linked to the fort by
a bridge consisting of 22 sunken piers connected by 12' X 50' "pontoons"
chained together. The piers still survive in the muddy floor of the
lake and are currently being salvaged (?) along with numerous other
artifacts of the Revolutionary War.

RETURN TO RT. 73

88.1 1.0 RT. 73 CONTINUE 'STRAIGHT ON 73

88.8 .7 INTERSECTION - RT. 22 TURN LEFT
(SOUTH) ON RT. 22

112.4 23.6 South Bay, Lake Champlain

113.3 ' .9 Note Rock Falls along road cuts.

114.5 1.2 IN WHITEHALL - INTERSECTION &

TRAFFIC LIGHT, TURN LEFT AND TAKE
FIRST RIGHT, BEAR LEFT AT FORK
TO PARK AREA.

114.8 .3 STOP # 10
STOP # 10 - THE HUDSON-CHAMPLAIN CANAL

The canal follows the general path of wood creek which rises near
Fort Edward. During the spring of 1984 this area was badly flooded
when water backed up behind a coffer dam following a heavy rain. The
dam, installed to permit repairs on the canal, was not designed to
accommodate the sudden rise of waters and considerable damage was done
to the small museum here and other structures.
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Historically, the locality was called Skenesborough, after Philip
Skene, a prominent Tory. The claim to be the "birthplace of the United
States Navy", stems from the fact that Benedict Arnold's fleet was built
here, the first continental squadron. Although it was defeated at
Valcour Island, the fleet delayed the Burgoyne campaign until the next
year. The hull on display here is a survivor of the Battle of Platts-
burg Bay, during the War of 1812, A military road was built from here
to Fort Edward and later improved by Burgoyne.

115.1 .3 INTERSECTION - RT. 4 TURN RIGHT

115.2 .1 INTERSECTION -~ TRAFFIC LIGHT
BEAR LEFT ON RT. 4, SOUTH. This
road will follow closely the old
military road parallel to Wood
Creek. It travels over the
floor of Lake Fort Ann.

121.2 6.0 LAKE CLAYS ON RIGHT - NOTE
SLUMPING Champlain Canal Locks
on left.

121.7 .3 Note: ROCKFALLS IN ROAD CUT.

123.1 1.4 BRIEF PAUSE - ROAD CUT IN PRE-

CAMBRIAN GNEISS.

The foliation and some joints in the gneiss dip toward the east so
that the road cut intersects or '"daylights" them along the west side of
the road. In order to reduce the chance of failure along these planes,
the threatening blocks have been bolted into place with heavy threaded
" rods which penetrate into "solid" bedrock.

123.3 .2 SLUMPING IN LAKE CLAYS.
' This area was "corrected" in 1984
by reducing the slope angle.
Slumping reoccurred in the spring

of 1985
123.8 .5 Additional slumping
124.9 1.1 STOP # 11 UNCONFORMITY

STOP # 11

The base of the Potsdam Sandstone is exposed here in contact with the
precambrian gneiss. The basal conglomerate above the unconformity con-
tains many large quartz pebbles here. Additional exposures of the
Potsdam may be found by walking down the side road to the left and just
past the small valley, climb down over some old concrete slabs to a flat
exposure. Graded bedding, crossbedding and ripples can be found here
and in the railroad cut. Glacial striations, chatter marks and quarry-
ing faces may also be seen. A commercial building stone quarry across
the canal was previously operated and many local houses are built of
this rock.
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125.6 .7 BATTLE MT. A rear guard action
was fought here by the Americans
fleeing Burgoyne's army. This was
one of the first times that the
"Stars and Stripes" were flown in
battle.

127.7 1.6 ENTERING FORT ANN VILLAGE

The reconstructed blockhouse (bank) was originally intended for a
museum. It is fairly accurately constructed and very close to the
actual site of the fort which guarded the crossing of Halfway Brook
where it entered Wood Creek. There was a stockade surrounding the
blockhouse. Note the use of Potsdam sandstone in several of the older
buildings.

127.3 .1 Intersection and Traffic Light
Junction with Rt. 149W
CONTINUE SOUTH ON RT. 4

Burgoyne's line of march probably followed Route 4, but it is also
possible that he did follow this lower route.

131.3 2.0 SMITH'S BASIN. INTERSECTION WITH
NOTRE DAME EXTENSION. BEAR RIGHT
UP THE HILL.

On the farside of the canal is an
excellent section of Cambrian and
Ordovician carbonates described
by Donald Fisher in the N.E.I.G.C.
Guidebook 61st mtg. 1969. An old
limestone quarry and kiln was
operated just across the bridge

in an exotic block or thrust slice
of Orwell and Glens Falls limestone.
The basin was an old canal basin
and at one time was a fairly large
settlement.

136.1 4.8 INTERSECTION - BURGOYNE AVENUE
TRAFFIC LIGHT - TURN LEFT.

137.0 .6 KINGSBURY LANDFILL (Closed)

Note also, the Feeder Canal, five "combines'" Locks and small house at
right of intersection beyond canal.

The Kingsbury Landfill is now probably the chief source of P.C.B.'s
entering the Hudson River. Many capacitors were disposed of here and on hot
summer days, their sweet odor can be detected. The P.C.B.'s are leaching
out of the site, into the canal and into the Hudson River. Another path
is into the groundwater and the lowlands below the site to the river.
Current plans call for the capping of the site hopefully sealing it.

General Electric has made a major contribution toward the cost, but the
remainder must be borne by the local taxpayers.
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The feeder canal served two purposes: to move barges to Hudson Falls
and Glens Falls and to maintain the water level of the lower section of
the canal.

The small house may have been Burgoyne‘s Headquarters when his army
camped here. In any event, it is thought to be one of only two buildings
not burned down during Carleton's Raid .in 1780.

137.7 .7 . TINTERSECTION - JOHN STREET — RED
 FLASHER - TURN RIGHT

Continue on John Street through the

intersections at Oak, Wright,
Popular, and Main Street, where
there is a traffic light.

138.6 .9 GENERAL ELECTRIC PLANT. TURN

RIGHT AT INTERSECTION
138.9 .3 INTERSECTION - TURN LEFT OVER
BRIDGE.

This is Baker's Falls, the highest falls on the Hudson. While it is
capped by a dam to increase its generating capacity, it is probably due
to a fault. The river has cut a deep gorge through the softer shales
below the falls.

It was the presence of this falls which caused Fort Edward to be built
and the settlement of "Sandy Hill" to develop into the Village of Hudson
Falls. The falls and dams upstream provided the water power for the early
mills and later the hydroelectric generating plants, ultimately leading to
the locating of the General Electric plants and the P.C.B. problem. It
was also found that some P.C.B. was used to pvoduce carbon paper upstream
at a paper mill.

139.6 .7 INTERSECTION - BLUEBIRD ROAD
TURN LEFT.
141.3 1.7 CAPUTO DUMPSITE.

This site which is located along the right side of the road, in back of
the houses was used to dispose of industrial wastes from the General
Electric Company from about 1958 to 1970. It was an open pit into which
barrels were placed, filled with waste P.C.B.'s and T.C.E. The sub-
surface consists of glacial sands and lake clays overlying bedrock. The
watertable is about 25 feet down. ENCON. well information indicates the
following:

0 - 70 feet Medium to fine sand
70 - 95 feet Fine to very fine sand with
silt lenses 1/8 to 1/2 " thick.
95 - 100 feet Fine sand - clay lenses with
brown varves.
100 feet + Gray clay and silt lenses over
bedrock.
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The site has been enclosed by 1600' slurry wall 100 feet deep and
three feet thick in an attempt to contain the leakage. The slurry
consists of 70% soil, 28% native clay and 2% bentonite. The whole is
capped to shed water. The P.C.B.'s appear to be more or less contained
and saturate the soil above the watertable. The T.C.E.'s on the other-
hand appear to have sunk down rapidly to about 70 feet. A plume has
formed between 45 and 70 feet, spread out about one mile down gradient
in 2-2% years. The water at the watertable appears clean as does the
water below 70 feet, thus the plume appears to be moving toward the
southeast in a sheet about 25 feet thick at a present rate of eight
feet per day.

Many residential waterwells have already been polluted and some pro-
perties in close proximity are claiming unsafe levels of vapors within
the structures. Because of pending litigation, it is difficult to obtain
specific and valid information from some parties. The plume which is
moving toward the Fort Edward water supply has shown up in a stream
feeding it. A system of aeriating the water has been installed which
allows the T.C.E. to dissipate. Additional P.C.B.'s were sprayed along
the Fort Edward road to settle dust and this has recently been removed
by scooping up the contaminated soil and placing it at the Caputo Site
where it is to be encapsulated.

CONTINUE TO ROUTE 9

142.7 1.4 INTERSECTION WITH ROUTE 9 - Turn
left toward I-87 - Exit 17

TO SARATOGA TAKE SOUTHBOUND LANE

TO GLENS FALLS AND NORTH TAKE NORTHBOUND LANE
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